














XVl Seventy-sizth Annual Meeting.

“ At the suggestion of H. M. Office of Works, the Society
has appointed a sub-Committee to consider the matter of
drawing up a schedule of monuments in Somerset for the
information of the inspectors of Ancient Monuments. An
appeal has been sent to the local secretaries to give assistance
in this matter. The names of all monuments included in the
proposed schedule are submitted to the Council.

“It will be fitting here to mention the excellent work
carried out by the Bath and Wells Advisory Committee for
the protection of churches, some of whose meetings have been
held at Taunton Castle. Its sphere of influence, usefulness
and work increases, and the fabric and ornaments of our
churches are now considerably less in jeopardy.

“ At the invitation of the Society the South - Western
Naturalists’ Union held its second annual conference at
Taunton at Whitsuntide, with Taunton Castle as headquarters.
The Union had a very satisfactory meeting, and was joined
on its expeditions and at its meetings by some of the
members of the Natural History Sections of our Society. The
visitors expressed themselves as very grateful for all that had
been done to make their visit a pleasant and profitable one.

“ The Society’s sections have been actively engaged on their
special branches of natural history. They have provided
several books for the Library useful for their studies. The
Ornithological Section’s report for 1923 covered 38 folio pages.
The Essex Field Club presented a large number of herbarium
specimens, chiefly from Somerset, collected a century ago by
Dr. Southby olim Gapper, of Bridgwater. They have been
examined by Dr. Watson and Mr. W. D. Miller, and Mr. T. W.
Cowan has kindly mounted the selected specimens on 93
sheets.

“ Taunton Castle was visited during 1923 by 8,909 persons,
including 2,345 attendances by members. This total has been
exceeded only once previously.

“The Council recommends the following appointments :(—
Mr. H. E. Balech, Hon. Curator of the Wells Museum, as an
honorary life member, in recognition of his conspicuous services
to Mendip research ; and Dr. A. Bulleid, ¥.s.A., the discoverer
of the Somerset Lake Villages, as a Vice-President.



Finances. xvil

“In accordance with Rule II one-third of the elected
members of the Council retire annually by rotation. Those
retiring at this meeting are the Rev. J. Byrchmore, Mr. A. E.
Eastwood, the Rev. Preb. J. Hamlet and Mr. H. B. Sheppard,
and the three last-named have been nominated for re-election.
The Council also recommends the election of Dr. R. L. Meade-
King to fill the vacancy.”

Mr. Jorx E. PRITCHARD, F.8.A., in moving the adoption of
the Report, said it was a fine summary of the year’s work, and
particularly as to its scientific excavations, which gave the
Society a foremost position in the country. This was wholly
due to the enthusiasm of its Council and to the special know-
ledge of its Asst.-Secretary and Curator, whose experience in
archeeological research work was unrivalled. The speaker
referred also to the increasing value of the Museum at Taunton
Castle which was ever a great attraction to the antiquary on
account of its excellent classification.

Mr. H. Stuart THoMmpsoN seconded the motion, which was
carried.

Jrinances,

The Rev. Prebendary T. F. PALMER, in the absence of the
Hon. Treasurers, presented the Statement of Receipts and
Payments for the year 1923, and proposed their adoption.

Mr. Cuarres Tite seconded the proposition, which was
carried.
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RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR 1923, (GENERAL ACCOUNT).
REcEIPTS. PAYMENTS.
£ & d £ g.4d. £ s d. & g

To Balance at Bank 31st December, 1922 : 18 9 By General Printing and Stationery 1111 11

. Members’ BSubscriptions 1922 1+ 0 6 +» Fueland Light 5 6 5 8

» ¥ 1923 L. S SR ) | 1 Lepairs to Buildings ®14 9
i 3 T SR 515 6 ,» Repairs and Renewals of Furnishings 14 6 7 o
— »» General Postages and Telegrams ... 10 1 e
813 2 0 » Insurances 3012 1 %
»» Liess Refund of Subseriptions overpaid, 1923 212 6 » Rates and Taxes 735 R =
————— 810 9 6 » Petty Expenses e = @
.» Members' Entrance Fees ARG » Sundry Payments 711 2 ¥
«« Donafions ol 2.9 0 ,» Watermain Wayleave .. 0 0 kg
.» Museum Receipts 122 7 3 » Assist-Secretary and Curator’s Salary 300 0 0 =
,» Publications 26 12 11 » Wages of Staff 160 3 9 =L,
.» Rents B4 0 0 - Accountants' Charges 565 0 e
» Dividends -New Zealand 49 Stock (Book » Museum Specimens o 020 A
Account) 4 6 0 » Books and Bookbinding ... 3l 13 7 Ly
5% War Loan Bond ... 1112 6 ,» Subscriptions to other Societies 8 18 10 =
1518 6 » Rent of Yard ... 00 =
., Miscellaneous Receipts ... 013 6 » Liegal Expenses 413 8 =
s Transfer from Woodward Fund ... 3 3 9 »» Short Guide to Taunton Castle, 2,500 Copies 19 50 Lol
= 3 5 Wiglesworth Fund 610 0O . —_—— 828 3 5 by
GRS 911 9 | ,, “Proceedings,” 1922t 24215 9 =
., Balance at Bank, 31st December, 1923 1816 6 &
S
e =
£1,089 15 8 b

* During the year 515 subscriptions not exceeding half-a-guinea, and 491 subscriptions of larger amounts were received.
t This does not include £18 17s. 10d., eontributed to the Illustration Fund by Dr. A. ., Fryer.
The total cost to the Society of the** Proceedings,” Vol. LXIX, for1923, was £153 8s. 9., of which nothing had been paid on 31st December, 1923,

Audited and found correct.

2nd February, 1924.

£1,089 15 8

A. C. MOLE & CO., Incorporated dccountants, Taunton.

H. J. BADCOCEK,
GEORGE F. IRELAND, |

| Hon. Treasurers.



SPECIAL ACCCOUNTS AS AT 3lst DECEMBER, 1923.

WOODWARD FUND.
£ B.d. £s.d.| £ s.d. £ s d
To Transfer tio General Account s g [0 By Balance from 1922 we 1597160 9
. Balance ¢/d il . 16013 1 |, Interest for the Year 319 1
——— 163 14 1 | ————— 163 14 10
‘ Balance bjd £160 13 1
CAPITAL ACCOUNT (LIFE MEMBERSHIP FEES).
£ f.d. # sd
By Balance from 1922, viz.—
5% War Loan (£300) at cost .. 282 4 3
Deposit at Bank o 0.6 6
—_— 25210 9
BOOK FUND.
By Balance from 1922 (New Zealand 4%, Stock) . £107 11 4
WIGLESWORTH FUND.
£ 8 d £ g.d £ sd.
To Transfer to (n.neml Aceount - 610 0 By Balance from 1922 o 26 9 6
»» Balance c/d 2010 9 ,» Interest for Year A i b
S Ry ——— £7 0 9
ES— | ==
Balance b/d £20 10 9
MUSEUM CASES FUND
£ 8. d. £ s.d. £ @ d.
To Balance 6316 0 By Balance from 1922 .. 62 410
— 3» Interest for Year s JUTEO )
L£6316 0 —— £6316 0

Balance b/d L£63 16 0

"SRAUDUL



GENERAL STATEMENT.

£ ad £ 8.d
To Deposits at Parr's Bank :(—
Woodward Fund we 26018 1
Capital Account % 5 0 6 6
Wiglesworth Fund 2010 9
Museum Cases Fund ... 6316 0
— 2456 6 4
»» General Account (Current) 1816 6
«w New Zealand 4% Stock at cost ... 107 11 4
» 9% War Loan Bonds at cost 282 4 3
£653 18 b

£ 85.d. £ 5 4
By Balances :—
Woodward Fund 160 13 1
Capital Account 28210 9
Book Fund 107 11 4
Wiglesworth Fund 2010 9
Musenm Cases Fund 63 16 0
——— i35 111
By General Current Account 1816 6
£653 18 5

Audited and found correct, 2nd February, 1924.

A. C. MOLE & CO., Incorporated Accountants, Taunion.

STATEMENT

TAUNTON CASTLE

RECETPTS. £ 8 d

11} Grant, Somersetshire Archieological and N, H. ‘mmet\ S & | S
. Grant, Taunton Town Council s we b0 0

- ! Grant, Taunton Field Club w 220
»a Donations Wk w 810 6
»» Miscellaneous ... RO IG e
£ 5 2

OF ACCOUNTS, ON DECEMBER

31st, 1924.

EXCAVATION FUND.

PAYMENTS. £ maid

To Wages nf Workmen . 2418 6%
,» Foreman's tl'u.(,l!mu e\pr'm.f“; - s QIR
5 Ipsurance 011 3

5y Miseellaneous v 0 diaE
s Cheque Book A LN N R
»» Balance at the Banlk - 01510
£27 5 2

H. ST. GEORGE GRAY.
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Somerset Record Society. xx1

The Mew Presivent.

Professor Sir Wirtzam B. DAWERINS, F.R.S., expressed the
Society’s great regret at the death of the Hon. Aubrey Herbert
which followed so soon after his Presidency of the Dulverton
Meeting last summer. He referred to Mr. Herbert’s many-
sided activities, and then spoke of the fine Museum at Taunton
(lastle and the burden of its upkeep by the county society.
He then proposed the election of Dr. W. J. Sollas, Professor of
Geology and Palzontology in the University of Oxford, as
President of the Society for the year 1924-25.

Major-General W. pu G. Gray, c.n., seconded the propo-
sition, which was carried by acclamation.

Election of Pfficers.

The Rev. B. J. DAy proposed that the officers of the Society
be re-elected, including three of the outgoing members of the
Council, viz. Prebendary Hamlet, Mr. A. E. Eastwood and
Mr. H. B. Sheppard ; also the election of Dr. A. Bulleid as
a Vice-President ; Mr. Herbert Balch as an honorary life
member ; Dr. R. L. Meade-King as a member of the Council ;
and the following as Local Secretaries :—Mr. J. A. Barnes
(Minehead), Mr. Humphrey Blake (Crewkerne), Dr. S. L.
Brimblecombe (Stoke-under-Ham), the Rev. J. Byrchmore
(Bath), Maj.-General W. du G. Gray (Dulverton), and the Rev.
H. D. Lewis (Langport).

Mr. F. W. Hemery seconded the motion, which was carried.

Somerser Record Societp.

The following is a summary of the Rev. Preb. T. F. PALMER’S
remarks at the Bristol Meeting :—

During the year twenty-seven new members were enrolled ;
the Society lost eight in the same period, which gave a net
gain of nineteen in response to the urgent appeal made a year
ago.



X X1l Seventy-sizth Annual Meeting.

Volume xxxv, “ Two Beauchamp Registers,” by Sir Henry
Maxwell Lyte was issued for the year 1920 in the early autumn
of 1923.

Volume xxxvi, ° Somersetshire Pleas,” by Mr. Lionel
Landon, a continuation of Mr. Chadwyck-Healey’s Volume x1v
of the series, was ready at the end of 1923 (issued for the
vear 1921).

Work was in an advanced state on Volume xxxvir, “ Auto-
biography of Bishop Kidder” (from a manuscript in the
Wells Cathedral Library), by Mrs. Armitage Robinson. It
would be issued for 1922. The volume for 1923 would consist
of the *“ Accounts of the Chamberlains of the City of Bath * ;
that for 1924 of a collection of short early medieval docu-
ments.

As compared with the pre-war volumes the pages of the
present issues were fewer ; but a further increase of subsecribers
in the current year would enable the Society to return to
former conditions.

The Presivential Address.

The President, Professor W. J. SoLnas, D.sc., ¥.r.S., then
delivered his address entitled *“ The Antiquity of Man,” which
was illustrated by a diagram, ete. Tt is printed as the first
paper in Part II.

The speaker was cordially thanked for hiz address, on the
proposition of Prof. Sir W. B. Dawxgixs, seconded by Colonel
E. St. . PEMBERTOX.

At the close of the meeting the members adjourned for
luncheon at the Royal Hotel, College Green.

St. Peter’s Dospital, WBristol (Frontispiece).

After luncheon the members were conducted through part
of the city in two groups, one being taken by Mr. J. E. Pritchard
and Mr. C. Wells, the other by Mr. J. J. Simpson and Mr. C. E.
Boucher.

All met at Peter Street, and at St. Peter’s Hospital they
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If the chapel were taken as roughly half-way along the
length of that great corridor, they would see that there was
about as much of it destroved by the graves as there was
exposed by the excavations. All the rooms that led out of
that corridor were of course destroyed along with it,—the
chapel itself stood on the site of at least one beautiful floor,
which was broken up when the foundations were put in in 1875,

All along the north side of the corridor were rooms to the
number of six, none of them having any remains of interest.
At the corner where that corridor turned to the south was a
group of large rooms with their floors in fairly good condition.
There was a great hexagonal room in the centre, 241 feet in
diameter, with parts of its floor intact, the central design being
nearly perfect.! To the right is a room about 12 feet in length,
with an apsidal end, so common in Roman houses ; also with
a floor of high-class work and design. On the left was a
hypocaust with a few of the pillars made of large-sized bricks
still standing. The small triangular rooms at the base of the
larger buildings had been examined, and that completed the
excavations to date.

The few small objects of interest found were exhibited in a
case for the visitors to see, and consisted of bone pins, metal
rings, iron nails, a bronze fish-hook in good condition having
a barb, ete. Some fifty bronze coins had been found, dating
from the middle of the third century.

Continuing their journey the members arrived at Somerdale
on Keynsham Hams at 11.45 a.m., where Messrs. J. S. Fry
and Sons, Ltd., are erecting their new factories, and where in
the early stages of the new constructional work, Roman remains
had been discovered.

Mr. E. W. Hiurox welcomed the members on behalf of the
directors of the firm, and said that the first intimation that
the site had been occupied by the Romans was the finding of
small pieces of pottery, and subsequently the workmen un-
covered two stone coffins. Later the foundations of a Roman

1. This pavement is figured in Journal of Roman Studies, vol. XII, pt. 2
(for 1922), ¢ Roman Britain in 1923,” plate ix. The same report also con-
tains a plan of the Keynsham Roman house ; and this plan also appears in
The Antiquaries Journal, 1V, 156,
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than those at Whitchurch : the east and west arches were here
also pointed and unmoulded, and the capitals of the corbelled
shafts were merely scalloped. It could hardly be doubted that
the work at Whitchurch was a more elaborate and refined
edition of Queen Charlton, possibly by the same designer. In
both places the towers were of the axial type, forming separate
buildings between nave and chancel, with transeptal annexes :
the south transept at Queen Charlton had been pulled down,
but the arch which led into it remained and was now filled by
a plain window.

The chancel was lengthened in the XIIT Century, and a
chapel was added on the south side. This had been destroyed,
but the arcade of two bays remained. The capitals of the pier
and responds were exceptionally beautiful examples of XIII
Century sculpture, c¢. 1230-40. As in the corbels at Whit-
church, the foliage sprang directly from the heads of the
shafts without intervening neck-moulds : that type of design
was peculiar to that architectural district, and was seen at its
best here and in the arcades at Nympsfield in Gloucestershire.

No further additions were made to the body of the Church,
though the nave was largely rebuilt in the XV Century. The
tower rose in two stages above the Church. The lower of
them had wide two-light window-openings with round heads
and moulded arches, and was completed soon after the work
on the ground-floor. In the XV Century a tall upper stage
with a battlemented parapet was built and buttresses added
at the angles of the tower.

The Church and the houses round the village green form a
picturesque group of some architectural beauty, and this quiet
and remote village, lying among country lanes, is singularly
unspoiled by modern buildings. In the middle of the green
is a fine cross upon a lofty stepped base. Here the members
were photographed in a group.

dlansopke.

Proceeding to Cottle’s Farm, Pensford., the members were
able to see a well preserved section of Wansdyke, by permission
of the owner, Mr. Farnham Flower, and the tenant, Mr. Frank
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England were Stonehenge, Avebury, Arbor Low (Derbyshire),
and Stanton Drew. Excavations were still going on at Stone-
henge under the supervision of Colonel Hawley ; at Avebury
the speaker had worked on behalf of the British Association
for five short seasons ; at Arbor Low he directed excavations
as long ago as 1901 and 1902. Stanton Drew had not been
touched by the spade, except in the clearing of some of the
stones.

Although Sir Norman Lockyer never visited Stanton Drew
he worked at it astronomically on the ordnance maps, and his
observations were recorded in his work on ‘ Stonehenge and
other British Stone Circles.”

The Manor House, Chein 9Bagna.
(Formerly called ** Firgrove ).

It is said that the foundations of a former house here show
work of the time of Henry VII and other parts are Elizabethan
and Stuart. The old house appears to have been rebuilt in
1656 by Richard Vickris, a merchant of Bristol. His grandson,
Richard, received pardon at the hands of Judge Jeffreys,—
at what cost is unknown. Robert Summers, of Haverfordwest,
bought the property from the last of the Vickris family. One
of the outbuildings bears the initials R.S. 1750 on the weather-
vane. In 1766 he purchased the manor of Chew Magna with
North Wick and the manor of Dundry. Anne, daughter of
Robert and Mary Summers, married James Harford and
through this marriage the property came into the hands of the
Harford family. In 1845 it was dispersed by auction. William
Adlam, who married a grand-daughter of John Harford,
bhought the house and some of the land, but not the manorial
rights, which were acquired by the Rev. E. A. Ommanney,
vicar of Chew Magna. He sold them to John Colthurst, who
left them to his daughter, Ellen, from whom the late Mr.
Edward J. Thatcher bought them and united house and manor
once more.

On arrival the members were entertained to Tea—delight-
fully laid out in two reception-rooms—by Mrs. E. J. Thatcher.
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who said that originally there was a church in that situation on
the old city wall. The earliest church was built ¢. 1030 ; it was
repaired and beautified in 1361, and the crypt dated from
¢. 1503. The Church became dangerous about 1762-68. when
it was taken down and rebuilt, and the structure was again
restored in 1823. The groined roof and hosses of the crypt
were very perfect.’

WBristol Tatheoral.

From St. Nicholas® Church the members proceeded to the
Jathedral, where they were welcomed by the Rev. Canon R. .J.
Fletcher, .p., on behalf of the Dean and Chapter.

Dr. A. Hamiurox TaoMpsox, in the course of his address,
said the two great churches of Bristol differed widely in their
original character and purpose. While St. Mary Redcliffe was
merely a parochial chapel attached to the Church of Bed-
minster, the revenues of which formed a prebend in Salisbury
Cathedral, and while its present splendour was due to the
munificence of citizens, the Cathedral Church was the church
of an abbey of Augustinian Canons, who formed a community
living outside the life of the city. At its foundation in the
XI1L Century, the abbey became a member of the order or
congregation of Victorine canons, whose chief house was the
famous abbey of St. Victor at Paris, illustrious for the contri-
butions of its members to philosophy. mystical theology, and
religious poetry. Its medieval history, for so important a
house, was uneventful ; but it was one of the churches selected
by Henry VIIT as the seat of a new bishopric after the sup-
pression of the monasteries, and in 1542 it became the some-
what inconvenient head of a diocese which, apart from Bristol
and a few neighbouring parishes, consisted of the distant
county of Dorset, an arrangement which survived until the
union of the sees of Gloucester and Bristol in 1836. The see
of Bristol recovered its independence in 1897, and was now the
head of a more manageable diocese.

1. See the two plates in the Bristol volume of the Archmological Institute,
1853, p. 122,









